I. IDENTITY OF PETITIONER 

Petitioner Norman Rooney, the appellant below, asks the court to 

review the decision of Division II of the Court of Appeals referred to in 

Section II. 

II. COURT OF APPEALS DECISION 

Norman Rooney seeks review of the Court of Appeals opinion 

entered on October 13, 2015. A copy of the opinion is attached. 

III. ISSUE PRESENTED FOR REVIEW 

Officers may only frisk a person for weapons if they have 
reasonable suspicion to believe that s/he is armed and presently 
dangerous before deciding to search. Here, the Court of Appeals 
upheld the frisk of Mr. Rooney based on decorative swords on his 
wall and his actions after the officers told him that they were going 
to conduct the search. Did the frisk violate Mr. Rooney's rights 
under the Fourth and Fourteenth Amendments and Wash. Const. 
art. I,§ 7? 

IV. STATEMENTOFTHECASE 

Norman Rooney was asleep in his bedroom when two Department 

of Corrections (DOC) officers and a team of police knocked on the door of 

his house. RP 15. The officers were looking for a DOC supervisee who 

also lived in the home. RP 9. 

Eventually, the officers decided to search Mr. Rooney's bedroom 

to investigate a potential community custody violation by his roommate. 



CP 29. The officers woke Mr. Rooney. RP 22. He was only wearing 

boxer shorts. RP 22. 

Mr. Rooney asked if he could put on some pants before leaving the 

room. RP 22. The officers said that any pants he put on would be 

searched as well. RP 22. 

Mr. Rooney picked up pants from the floor. RP 22. One of the 

officers lunged for the pants and felt a gun inside. RP 23. They seized the 

gun. RP 23-24. 

The state charged Mr. Rooney with unlawful possession of a 

firearm. CP 1-3. 

Mr. Rooney moved to suppress the gun seized from his pants. CP 

11-18. 

The trial court noted that the search of Mr. Rooney's pants posed a 

difficult question. The court found that Mr. Rooney made no furtive 

gestures. RP 105, 111. Instead, the court held that the decorative swords 

and axes on the wall of Mr. Rooney's bedroom were sufficient to create a 

reasonable suspicion that he was armed and dangerous. RP Ill. In 

upholding the warrantless frisk, the judge said, "I think it's just about as 

far as [the reasonable suspicion requirement] can be stretched." RP Ill. 

The court found Mr. Rooney guilty at a stipulated facts trial. CP 

32-3 7. Mr. Rooney timely appealed. CP 61-79. 
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The Court of Appeals held that the search of Mr. Rooney's 

bedroom was unlawful because he had, at least, common authority over 

the room with his roommate and objected to the search. Published 

Opinion, pp. 5-8. 

Still, the court affirmed Mr. Rooney's conviction for unlawful 

possession of a firearm. Published Opinion, pp. 11-12. The court held 

that the decorative weapons on the wall in the bedroom posed a safety 

risk. Published Opinion, pp. 10-11. The Court of Appeals also relied on 

the fact that Mr. Rooney "openly grabbed his pants" after the officers told 

him that they would search them. Published Opinion, pp. 10-11. 

V. ARGUMENT WHY REVIEW SHOULD BE ACCEPTED 

The Supreme Court should accept review and hold that the officers 
did not have reasonable suspicion that Mr. Rooney was armed and 
dangerous, and thus had no justification for searching his pants. 
This significant question of constitutional law is of substantial 
public interest and should be determined by the Supreme Court. 
RAP 13.4 (b)(3) and (4). 

An officer may conduct a frisk for weapons when s/he possesses 

specific and articulable facts creating an objectively reasonable suspicion 

that a person is armed and presently dangerous. State v. Harrington, 167 

Wn.2d 656, 668, 222 P.3d 92 (2009). The state must prove this 

foundation by clear, cogent, and convincing evidence. State v. Doughty, 

170 Wn.2d 57, 62, 239 P.3d 573 (2010). 
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Here, the trial court concluded that the frisk of Mr. Rooney's pants 

was justified based exclusively on the collectible swords and axes hanging 

on his wall. RP Ill. The court simultaneously found that Mr. Rooney did 

not make any furtive movements and that it was reasonable for him to 

seek to put on pants. RP Ill. 

The decorative weapons were readily visible; Mr. Rooney made no 

attempt to conceal them. The swords and axes did not suggest that Mr. 

Rooney owned any weapons small enough to be hidden in his pants. Mr. 

Rooney was legally entitled to own the decorative weapons. They did not 

represent any violent or criminal behavior on his part. 

There was no logical connection between the collectible swords 

and axes on display in Mr. Rooney's bedroom and the conclusion that he 

was armed and presently dangerous at the time of the frisk. 

A protective frisk must be justified based on what the officer knew 

before deciding to conduct the pat-down. State v. Adams, 144 Wn. App. 

I 00, I 05, 181 P.3d 3 7 (2008). 

Here, the trial court specifically found that Mr. Rooney did not 

make any furtive movements. CP 30. Even so, the Court of Appeals 

justifies the frisk based, in part, on the finding that he "openly grabbed his 

pants" after the officers told him that they would be searched. Published 

Opinion, p. II. 
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But, at that point, the officers had already decided to frisk Mr. 

Rooney. CP 30. The pat-down cannot be justified based on Mr. Rooney's 

actions upon learning that the officers planned to conduct an illegal search 

of his pants. Adams, 144 Wn. App. at 105. The Court of Appeals errs by 

relying on events occurring after the officer announced his intent to 

search. !d. 

Because the officers did not have reasonable suspicion that Mr. 

Rooney was armed and presently dangerous, the frisk of his pants violated 

his Fourth Amendment and art. I, * 7 rights. Harrington, 167 Wn.2d at 

668. The gun should have been suppressed. !d. Mr. Rooney's unlawful 

possession of a firearm conviction must be reversed. !d. 

This issue is significant under the state and federal constitutions 

and is of substantial public interest. This court should grant review. RAP 

13.4 (b)(3) and (4). 

VI. CONCLUSION 

The issue here is significant under the state and federal 

constitutions. Furthermore, because it could impact a large number of 

criminal cases, it is of substantial public interest. The Supreme Court 

should accept review pursuant to RAP 13 .4(b )(3) and ( 4 ).