RECEIVED
SUPREME COURT
STATE OF WASHINGTON
Nov 25, 2015, 10:49 am
BY RONALD R. CARPENTER
CLERK

RECEIVED BY E-MAIL

NO. 92472-4 COA NO. 46236-2-II Cowlitz Co. Cause NO. 13-1-01694-7

SUPREME COURT OF STATE OF WASHINGTON

STATE OF WASHINGTON,

Respondent,

٧.

NORMAN ROONEY,

Appellant/Petitioner.

RESPONSE TO PETITION FOR REVIEW

RYAN JURVAKAINEN
Prosecuting Attorney
AILA WALLACE/WSBA 46898
Deputy Prosecuting Attorney
Representing Respondent

HALL OF JUSTICE 312 SW FIRST KELSO, WA 98626 (360) 577-3080

I. IDENTITY OF RESPONDENT

The State of Washington, by and through the Cowlitz County Prosecuting Attorney's Office, respectfully requests this Court deny review of the October 13, 2015, published opinion of the Court of Appeals in *State* v. *Rooney*, COA No. 46236-2-II. This decision upheld the petitioner's conviction for one count of first degree unlawful possession of a firearm.

II. ANSWER TO ISSUES PRESENTED FOR REVIEW

The Court of Appeals properly held that substantial evidence supported the trial court's findings that the officer was concerned for his safety when he conducted a frisk of the petitioner's pants, and that the trial court's findings of fact supported its conclusions of law.

III. STATEMENT OF THE CASE

In December 2013, Alexandria White was under supervision with the Department of Corrections (DOC). RP 5, CP 25. DOC required Ms. White to obey all laws and to be available for supervision as requested, including keeping DOC apprised of her current address. RP 7. On December 26, 2013, Oxford house notified Corrections officer Chris Napolitano that Ms. White had moved, thereby violating her DOC conditions. RP 7. Officer Napolitano requested and received an arrest warrant for Ms. White for violations of her community custody. RP 8-9, CP 25. On December 30, 2013, Officer Napolitano spoke to another

supervised offender, Thomas DeClue. Mr. DeClue informed Officer Napolitano he lived with Norman Rooney, Alex White, their children, and his mother. RP 8-9.

Later on December 30, 2013, DOC Officers Napolitano and Keenan Harvey went to the residence and encountered White standing in a bedroom with Rooney and her newborn child in bed. RP 12, 15, 42, 58-59. Officer Napolitano observed swords and axes on the walls and a couple knives on the shelves of the bedroom in which Rooney slept. RP 15.

White was placed under arrest. Officers Napolitano and Harvey then asked Rooney to leave the bedroom as it was going to be searched. Rooney objected to the search, but eventually got up and requested to put on pants, as he was dressed in boxer shorts. RP 22. Rooney then picked up a pair of pants, at which time Officer Napolitano informed him that the pants would be searched. RP 22, 43. Officer Napolitano was concerned that Rooney may have had a weapon in his pants, given all of the weapons in the room. RP 23, 25. Rooney then cursed and pulled the pants away from Officer Napolitano. Napolitano immediately felt what he thought was a gun in the pants. RP 23. He grabbed the gun while Rooney still had a hold of the top of the pants. He then asked Rooney if there was a gun in the pants. Rooney confirmed there was a gun and that it was his. RP 24. Rooney was

placed in cuffs by Officer Harvey. Longview Police assisted DOC and were given the gun. RP 25.

IV. ARGUMENT

The Court of Appeals properly held that substantial evidence supported the trials court's findings of fact and conclusions of law; therefore, the convictions should be upheld and the petition for review should not be granted.

RAP 13.4(b) states that a petition for review will only be accepted by the Supreme Court only if one of four conditions are met: (1) If the decision of the Court of Appeals is in conflict with a decision of the Supreme Court; or (2) If the decision of the Court of Appeals is in conflict with a decision of another division of the Court of Appeals; or (3) If a significant question of law under the Constitution of the State of Washington or of the United States is involved; or (4) If the petition involves an issue of substantial public interest that should be determined by the Supreme Court. Neither in the petition for review nor in the decision from the Court of Appeals are there any issues that would fall under one of the four conditions as outlined by RAP 13.4(b). The Division II Court of Appeals holding in this case is not in conflict with any decisions either the Washington Supreme Court or another division of the Court Appeals. The holding also does not raise a significant question of law or involve an issue of substantial public interest.

A trial court's denial of a motion to suppress is reviewed to determine whether substantial evidence supports the trial court's findings of fact, and whether those findings support the trial court's conclusion of law. *State v. Russell*, 180 Wn.2d 860, 330 P.3d 151 (2014). Substantial evidence is evidence that is sufficient to persuade a fair-minded person of the truth of the stated premise. In this case, Rooney challenges two of the trial court's findings – (1) that the officers saw several swords, an axe, and multiple knives, and (2) that the officer was concerned for his safety due to these weapons. However, substantial evidence supports these findings. The officer testified that he observed these weapons and that he was concerned Rooney may have a weapon in his pants due to the weapons. Therefore, there is substantial evidence supporting these findings of facts.

Furthermore, the trial court's conclusions of law were supported by the facts. A police offer does not need to be certain that a person is armed before conducting a protective frisk, and a reviewing court should not substitute an officer's judgment for their own. As the Court of Appeals stated, "A founded suspicion is all that is necessary, some basis from which the court can determine that the detention was not arbitrary or harassing." *State v. Harrington*, 167 Wn.2d 656, 222 P.3d 92 (2009). The multiple weapons in plain view gave rise to a founded suspicion that there was a gun

in Rooney's pants. The Court's finding that a frisk for weapons was proper is valid.

There is no significant question of law or public interest, and the petition should be denied.

V. CONCLUSION

For the reasons stated above, Petitioner's petition for discretionary review should be denied.